Annotated Version of Summary of Responsive Comments with 

Possible Fixes to Address Comments (for Discussion Purposes Only)

NOTE: With respect to possible fixes, suggested additions are underlined, deletions are shown as strike-throughs.

Summary of Responsive Comments

(#s in parentheses following comment refer to number assigned to comments submitted. See accompanying Comment Chart and Email submissions. )

I.
General

1.
Lengthen page limit (2 comments) (III.B.2)

a) at least 50 pages (other states have higher page limits – too hard to propose comprehensive reform within 20 page limit)  (#1)  

b) at least 25 pages (since restating questions takes 3 pages)(#7)

c) Can we make it clear that appendices do not count towards page limit (#7)

[Proposed fix to three comments: “A narrative (20-35-page maximum, typewritten, 1 ½ spaced, 12 pt. Times New Roman font size) that describes the reform option.”]

2.
Pre- Proposal Conference  (I)

Should be held earlier than March 9  (#4)    [Note: Current schedule allows for two weeks for the Solicitation to be circulated before a pre-proposal conference is held.  Notice of Intent to Submit a Proposal is due three business days after the conference and final proposals are due a little less than a month after the notices are due.  Possible fix: Change pre-proposal conference date to March 2, which would mean written questions would have to be due by February 27, which is just three days before the final Solicitation is released.]

3.
Notice of Intent (Attachment A)
Add words “if known” to “please provide a three sentence description.” (#4)     [Possible fix: “Please provide a three-sentence description of the proposal that addresses what is being proposed, who and or what in the health care system would be affected, and what the basic approach to reform would be, if these things are known.]

4.
Expectations

Please understand that proposals likely to be largely conceptual in nature and lack some detail.  (#4)     [Possible fix: See suggested fix under III. Content Instructions below.]

5.
Define Terms ( #4)


Expansion of coverage  [Possible fix: Add to Definitions, “Expansion of coverage” means more Coloradans have coverage.  (“Coverage” is defined in the Definitions section.)]

Decrease health care costs     [Note: This is the terminology used in 208.  Possible fix: Add to Definitions, “Decrease health care costs” means a reduction in the actual cost, price or expenditures for health care.”]

6.
Questions:

Is there an evaluation matrix which enables respondents to determine if there are specific policy approaches that are considered more appropriate in Colorado context?  (#7)     [Possible fix: Add this question to our list of Q&As and state that the answer is “No.”]

Will coalition proposals be scored higher? (#7)      [Possible fix: Add this question to our list of Q&As and state that the answer is “No.”]
7.
Definitions:



a.
IIA6 re Safety Net Providers 

Change to “one who is willing to provide care to people regardless of ability to pay”. (#7)
[Possible fix: Use the suggested definition instead of the current definition, which reads, “Safety net providers means providers and institutions that provide low cost or free medical care to low-income people, uninsured people, or people with limited access to health care.”]

IIB.
Purpose of Solicitations
Use “reform concept paper” and “reform proposal” in the same sentence.  Are these terms interchangeable?  (#7)     [Possible fix:  “The purpose of this Solicitation for Proposals is to request reform concept papers that describe health care reform proposals…”]

IIC.  
Principles: [Note: The principles were developed and approved by the full Commission.  These points will be forwarded to the full Commission.]
a. Add principle about the importance of the safety net providers and/or strengthening safety net.  (##7, 9, 12, 23)

b. “Essential services” is less than comprehensive.  Need universal and comprehensive health insurance. (#2)

c. Define “essential health care services” This should include comprehensive primary and preventive care (currently defined in Colorado Statute).  (#7)

III.
Content Instructions

[Possible general fix to deal with multiple comments about the level of detail requested: “Please be as specific as possible in your responses to minimize the any misunderstandings of your proposal. However, the Commission appreciates that proposers may not have answers to all of the questions at this time.  If this is the case, write in, “The proposal does not have an answer to this question at this time but will address this question if selected.”  Also, it is important to underscore that the Commission does not expect proposers to do detailed estimates, hire actuaries, or conduct economic analyses in order to submit a responsive proposal.  This will be done by the Commission’s Independent Consultant for the proposals selected for detailed technical analysis.”

Question 2 (Access)


“appropriate health care” should replace “medical care”  (#7)


[Comment: Not clear how this applies to Question 2.]

Question 5  (Impact on Specific groups)

a. Make it mandatory (##3,7, 23)  [Possible fix:  “(Optional) How will your proposal impact specific groups of people (e.g., low-income, rural, immigrant, ethnic minority, disabled)?”

b. Add sexual/gender orientation (#6) [Possible fix: “How will your proposal impact … (e.g., low-income, rural immigrant, ethnic minority, disabled, by sexual/gender orientation, etc.)?”

Question 8

Define “access”  (#7) [Note: Access is defined in the criteria section.  Suggested general fix: Repeat under Definitions all terms defined any place in the Solicitation.]

Question 9 (Safety net providers)

Now optional, make it mandatory (## 3,7,9,12 (“mistake not to include”) , 23) [Possible fix: “(Optional) How will the program affect safety net providers?”]

Question 10 (Coverage)


Suggested additions: 

a. Add how will this increase access to uninsured   #6  [Possible fix: Add question.]

b. How will uninsured get more private coverage    #6  [Possible fix: Add question.]
c. Define “health care coverage”   #7  [Note: “Coverage” is defined under Definitions.]

Question 11  (Coverage) 

Question is very specific, can this be answered generally, for example, by citing current county/state public insurance practices or are more specifics needed?  #7  [Possible fix: See suggested additional instructions above under III. Content Instructions.]

Questions 12 & 13 (Affordability)

Perception is that we are requiring depth of analysis that requires proposers to hire actuaries  and other experts.  They anticipate the cost of meeting these requirements to run as high as $200,000.  “PLEASE do not make this a process where only those who have an enormous financial interest in the outcome (insurance companies), can afford to respond.”  #21   [Possible fix: See suggested additional instructions above  under III. Content Instructions.  Also, add this question to Q&As and answer, “No.”]


Question 15 (Benefits)

Define what is meant by “adequate benefits”.  Is there a benchmark against which adequate benefits will be judged?  #7  [“Possible fix: “Please describe how and why you believe the benefits under your proposal are adequate, have appropriate limitations and address distinct populations.”]

Question 16 (Quality)  (note there are two question #16)

a. Add language re cultural competency, including ethnicity, sexual orientation, gender identity, education, and rural areas.  #6   [Possible fix: “How, if at all, will quality of care be improved (e.g., applying evidence to medicine, using information technology, improving provider training, aligning provider payment with outcomes, improving cultural competency including ethnicity, sexual orientation, gender identity, education and rural areas, etc.)?”]
b. Question is leading, suggest instead:  “How will quality be defined, measured and improved?” (#7)   [Possible fix: Use suggested question instead of how the question currently reads, which is: “How, if at all, will quality of care be improved (e.g., applying evidence to medicine, using information technology, improving provider training, aligning provider payment with outcomes, etc.)?”]

Question 17 (Efficiency)

Not clear what level of financial analysis is required.  (Cost and efficiency also addressed but not defined in principles and criteria sections.)   (#7) [Possible fix: See suggested additional instructions above under III. Content Instructions.]
Question 19 (Efficiency)

a. Define “Administrative costs” (#7)    [Possible fix: Add the following definition to the Definitions section: “Administrative costs are those costs incurred by government, private insurers, providers, payers and others in the course of paying for, getting reimbursed for or providing care exclusive of the direct costs of care.   Examples of administrative costs include billing, paying commissions, operating payment systems, time spent seeking prior approvals, etc.”]
b. Suggested change:  “How is your proposal expected to impact administrative costs?”  (#7)   [Possible fix: Use suggested question instead of how the question currently reads, which is: “Does your proposal reduce administrative costs?  If so, how?”

Questions 17-19, 23-28 (Efficiency and Financing)

Should address accountability and transparency of costs.  (#20 &20a)   [Possible fixes: In the appropriate places, add these two questions: “How does this proposal address accountability?” and “Does this proposal address transparency of costs?  If so, please explain.”  Should these be optional or mandatory questions?]

Question 28 (Financing- Public Funds)

How will these optional questions be evaluated?  (#7)    [Possible fix: Add to general instructions under III. Content Instructions, “Please be as specific as possible in your responses to minimize the any misunderstandings of your proposal. It should be noted that answers to optional questions will not be used in evaluating proposals.  These questions are being asked to assist the Commission in better understanding your proposal.   However, we appreciate that, in some cases, proposers may not yet have worked out the answers to these questions.” 

Question 22 (Wellness and Prevention)

Could be more open ended. Suggest:  “How does your proposal address wellness and prevention?” (#7) [Possible fix: Use suggested question instead of how the question currently reads, which is: “Does your proposal provide incentives to consumers for healthy personal behaviors and use appropriate preventive care?”]
Question 30 (How will the program be governed and administrated?)

Is this meant to imply that reform proposal should include a single program/solution?  (#7)     [Possible fix: “How will the program(s) included in the proposal be governed and administered?”]

Question 31 (Implementation)

Do not penalize proposers who cannot address this question. Implementation is a job for the legislature. (#8)  [Note: Question already says, “To the best of your knowledge…”  Possible fix: Make optional, so it would read, “(Optional) To the best of your knowledge, will any federal or state laws or regulations need to be changed to implement this proposal (e.g., federal Medicaid waiver, worker’s compensation, auto insurance, ERISA)?

Section IIIB4 - How proposal was developed

a. Currently optional – make it mandatory  (##7,23)    [Possible fix: “(Optional) A single page describing how your proposal was developed.]

b. Add requirement that proposers disclose financial interest in outcome proposed (##7,23)     [Possible fix: Add additional requirement: “5. A single page describing the financial interest in the proposed outcome by the proposer(s).”] 
IV.
Criteria

[Note:  Many of the comments reflect the fact that people did not understand that a lot of the language in this section comes directly from SB 208. Possible fix: Wherever applicable, quote language from 208 (e.g., “The Act that created the Commission says that the legislature is interested in “Coverage for all Colorado residents such that no individual or family will be at risk of financial hardship due to their medical expenses.”]

IVA1 “Comprehensiveness”  

a. Concern raised by several is “for whom these are issues” –“ The statement sounds like it is addressing a narrow segment of the population, when a comprehensive approach is called for”.  All Coloradans are at risk.  (##8,13,14,15,20 &20a, 22)     [Possible fix:  “A reform proposal that expands coverage and decreases costs broadly for all Coloradans. for whom these are issues.”]

b. Should include “health disparities”  (#6) [Possible fix:  “A reform proposal that expands coverage, improves health care ( especially for those with health disparities), and decreases costs broadly for all Coloradans for whom these are issues.”]

c. Should address issues of access for unmarried individuals.  (#6) [Possible fix:  “A reform proposal that expands coverage, addresses access ( including for unmarried individuals), and decreases costs broadly for all Coloradans for whom these are issues.”]

d. Please define comprehensive/comprehensiveness (#7)     [Note: The language here is an attempt to define comprehensive/comprehensiveness.]
IVA2
“Access”

a. Please define (#7)     [Note: Solicitation says that access is “The ability for all Coloradans to get timely, appropriate medical care.”]

b. Substitute “appropriate health care” for medical care to ensure that proposals address mental, dental, and physical health (#7)     [Possible fix:  “The ability for all Coloradans to get timely, appropriate medical health care.”]

IVA3
Coverage

Don’t presume health insurance.  Change to health care coverage. (#22)     [Possible fix: “Health insurance care coverage for all Colorado residents.” 

IVA4 Affordability

Be clear that everyone is at risk.  (#22)     [Note:  The language about risk of financial hardship is taken directly from 208.  Possible fix:  “Affordable health coverage for all Colorado residents; coverage for all Colorado residents such that no individual or family will be at risk of financial hardship due to their medical expenses.  Everyone is at risk.”]

IVA6  Benefits

What do we mean by “address distinct populations?”  (#4)    [Note:  Under Access in the Content Instructions, the Solicitation says, “(Optional) How will your proposal impact specific groups of people (e.g., low-income, rural, immigrant, ethnic minority, disabled)?”  Possible fix: “Benefits that are adequate, have appropriate limitations, and address distinct populations (e.g., low-income, rural, immigrant, ethnic minority, disabled)?”

IVA11  Financing

[Note:  Using this as a criterion was a special concern of one of the sponsors of 208.  Possible fix: Either eliminate as a criterion or relabel as “Distribution of Costs.”]  

a. Is there a bias which would penalize proposals that would require additional funds, even if sustainable?  (#7)     [Possible fix:  “Distribution of costs among individuals, employees, employers, government and others is viable, sustainable and fair.  [Note:  This criterion is only meant to get at the distribution of costs under the proposed reform, not whether new funds would need to be raised or how exactly those funds would be raised (e.g., $.50 increase in the tobacco tax).”]

b. Please add transparency  (#22)    [Possible fix: “Distribution of costs among individuals, employees, employers, government and others is viable, sustainable, transparent and fair.”]
IVA12   Implementation

Number of people raised concerns and suggested this be dropped. General concern is that severely limits the kinds of proposals we will receive and ability to effect major reform.  Perception is that Commission will not consider proposals that would require change to state or federal law.    Comments are that any comprehensive reform will encounter regulatory and statutory barriers and this question may exhibit a bias against comprehensive proposals.   (##7, 8, 10 &10a, 11, 13, 14,15,17,18, 20 &20a, 22)     

[Possible fix: Drop Implementation as a criterion.  Also, could move questions in Solicitation under the heading of Implementation to General and make clear that we are asking these questions simply to understand how the program would work and not, for example, to exclude proposals that might require significant changes to state or federal laws.]

General Comments on Criteria:

a. Proposers should not have to respond to all criteria  (#24)     [Proposed fix: Add language to the introduction to the Criteria section as follows, “Proposals will be reviewed based on the extent to which they meet or come close to meeting the criteria.  However, the Commission realizes that not all proposals may address all of the topics covered by the criteria.  This should not discourage anyone from submitting a proposal.  A proposal will not be deemed incomplete because it does not address all of the criteria.”]

b. Some criteria, for example, portability, benefits, choice, financing presume certain private insurance based outcomes and might discourage new, broader ideas.  (#10 &10a)   [Proposed fix: Add language to the introduction to the Criteria section as follows, “Proposals will be reviewed based on the extent to which they meet or come close to meeting the criteria. Although some of the terminology used in the criteria below is commonly used in the private insurance market, there is no intent on the part of the Commission to prejudge whether the preferred approach is a public, private or public-private one.”]  
c. Repeated use of “all Coloradans” (see for example IVA1, 2, 3, 4) raises issue of whether proposals that address needs of some will not be successful.  Commission should accept limited scope proposals. (#16)      [Proposed fix: See suggestion (a) above under General Comments on Criteria.]
Suggested Additions to Criteria:

[Question: Which, if any, of the following suggested criteria does the Committee want to recommend adding?  Please note that in some cases public commenters offered definitions to accompany their suggested additional criteria; see their original comments for more detail.]

a. Consumer/community Empowerment  (#5)

b. Universal  (#14)

c. Publicly Funded  (#14)

d. Accountable and Transparent  (#14)

e. Non interference in Dr/Patient relationship  (#14)

f. Inclusive of all necessary medical/dental care  (#14)

g. Preparation and training of health professionals  (#19)

h. Rural/urban focus – are we addressing all of Colorado’s unique communities?  (#19)

i. Behavioral health needs  (#19)

j. New models of delivery- for example, telemedicine and other new technologies.  (#19)

k. Proposals should address whole person, physical, dental, mental health needs.  (#7)
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